Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting
October 27, 2022
ZA-08-22, ZA-09-22, ZA-10-22
ZA-07-21, ZA-07-22 (Both Cases Continuances)

Members/Attendance: X Michael Johnston
X Ricky Morrison
N/A  Albert Sciulli
X Robert Durick
X John Grahovac
N/A  John Savarise

Also in attendance: X Bob Monus, Zoning Inspector
X Michele Richards, Recording Secretary

Mike Johnston called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

1st Order of Business:

Mike Johnston stated that the first order of business is to approve the minutes from the meeting held on
September 29, 2022. Ricky Morrison made a motion to approve the minutes from the September 29,
2022 meeting. John Grahovac seconded the motion.

Voting:

Yes  Ricky Morrison
Yes John Grahovac
Yes Bob Durick
Yes Mike Johnston

Motion carried.

2" Order of Business:

Case #ZA-07-21 — This case is a continued hearing to allow the appellant, Dustin Bach DBA/East Ohio
Properties, LLC to provide the Board with plans and drawings for improvements to be made to the
Poland Touch Free Car Wash (located at 3345 Center Road, Poland, Ohio) to aid in reduction of noise
from the dryer system.

Mike Johnston stated this is a continuance of the case. He asked if anyone was present to represent the
case.

Dustin Bach

Poland Touch Free Car Wash
65 Marwood Circle
Boardman, Ohio

Mike Johnston asked if all Board members received the latest drawing that Dustin submitted. All
members received the drawing. Mike Johnston stated the drawing summarizes putting some type of
sound enclosure around the dryers on the car wash, which was discussed at the last meeting. Dustin
Bach stated that is correct. Mike Johnston asked Bach what the time frame for the construction is. Bach
stated probably next spring, or when the ground thaws. Bob Durick asked Bach if this could be done
now. Bach replied no, due to other projects at other locations.



Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting
October 27, 2022
ZA-08-22, ZA-09-22, ZA-10-22
ZA-07-21, ZA-07-22 (Both Cases Continuances)

Bob Durick stated he had been at the car wash two different times, one time the sound was roaring, and
the other time there was hardly any sound.

Ricky Morrison stated he has concerns with this case. He stated he feels that Bach comes to the meetings
with ideas just to appease the Board. It has been an ongoing issue and he has concerns for the residents
that live near it. Bach stated that the car wash was there before the residents. Morrison stated when the
Board first gave the variance for the car wash it was for conditional use. He asked Bob Monus if that is
correct. Monus stated that is correct, however, the dryers were on the inside of the building, which is the
difference of where we are at today. Morrison stated he feels we are not getting anywhere with this case
and are just going around in circles.

Bob Durick asked Bach if they have something at another location that is similar to this proposed plan.
Bach stated no, per se, however, they built a brand new wash, where the old Jim’s Brushless was located
in Boardman, which has a 70’ bay with the doors at the end. Bach stated they feel this proposed plan will
conceal the noise.

Mike Johnston stated he does not know if the Board can make a decision on this case until the
improvements are made. Ricky Morrison and Bob Durick agreed. John Grahovac suggested to Bach that
he consider having an acoustical engineer or even someone from YSU’s physics or music departments to
be involved with the new plan as well.

Discussions continued between the Board and Bach.

Ricky Morrison asked Monus to define a conditional use permit. Monus stated a conditional use permit is
a permit that is applied for by an appellant for a certain specific use as a conditional use permit, in this
particular case, a car wash. When the original conditional use permit was granted, it was based on all of
the elements presented before the Board. There is no doubt there has been some modifications done since
that conditional use permit was granted, which is why we are here tonight. The goal is to get back to
where we originally were, in terms of what had taken place when that permit was granted. Morrison
asked Monus if he would agree that the modifications that Bach made null and voided the original
conditional use permit. Monus stated yes, that is why we are here tonight. The blowers were inside
originally and now they are on the outside, which have impacted the neighborhood in terms of noise.

Mike Johnston asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of this request or has a comment.

Larry Verzilli

47 Sycamore Drive

New Middletown, Ohio

Larry Verzilli stated he has never been to the car wash but questions how you enter through the car wash.
He asks if it is from the front and exits out the back towards the neighborhood? Bach stated correct. He
suggested that you turn it around and have the blowers on the 224 side and enter from the back. Bach
stated they would have to remount all the equipment. Verzilli stated it was just a suggestion.

Mike Johnston asked if anyone would like to speak against this request. No one responds.

After more discussion, the following motion was made:



Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting
October 27, 2022
ZA-08-22, ZA-09-22, ZA-10-22
ZA-07-21, ZA-07-22 (Both Cases Continuances)

Motion

Ricky Morrison made a motion in Case ZA-07-21 to continue the case no later than May 1, 2023, as per
the plans submitted by the Appellant at the Board of Zoning Appeals meeting on October 27, 2022. John
Grahovac seconded the motion.

Voting:

Yes  Ricky Morrison

Yes  John Grahovac

Yes  Bob Durick

Yes  Mike Johnston

Motion carried.

3" Order of Business:

Case #ZA-07-22 — This case is a continued hearing to allow the appellant, Justin Sargent, time to apply
modifications to the stack of his wood burning furnace that he is installing, and to present a drawing to
the Board showing a possible new location for it. His property is located at 8827 Woodland Drive,
Poland, Ohio.

Justin Sargent
8827 Woodland Drive

Justin Sargent stated at the last meeting he was instructed to add risers on the flue pipe, which he did, and
made some changes to how he burns, and it has improved quite a bit. He does not see it as a nuisance.
He spoke with the neighbor about how it’s been running and she is more concerned where he was moving
it to. Mike Johnson asked what the height is that he achieved. Sargent stated 21 feet, it was 15 feet.

Bob Durick asked Bob Monus what the rules are for having an outside wood burner in Poland Township.
Monus stated the only rule is that you have a conditional use permit. Durick stated he went to the site and
it was smoking, and he did not smell like smoke when he got home. He did see two neighbors and asked
if they had any issues and they said they had none.

Mike Johnston asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of this request.

Jim Erdel
8975 Woodland Drive

Erdel stated he has not met Sargent, he is one of his neighbors. Wood burners are on the street and are
not bothersome. He was not aware that Sargent had a wood burner. With the stack being extended, it
will draw the smoke up. They live in the country and he feels it should not be a big issue.

Mike Johnston proceeds to read a letter from Joe and Sue Posey in favor of the request.

Mike Johnston asks if anyone would like to speak against this request.



Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting
October 27, 2022
ZA-08-22, ZA-09-22, ZA-10-22
ZA-07-21, ZA-07-22 (Both Cases Continuances)

Stephanie Gennaro
8811 Woodland Drive

Gennaro stated that she thought she and Justin Sargent had agreed to relocate the burner so it is not
blowing towards her house. It was to be relocated behind the trees on his extra lot, further back where the
other neighbor (Don’s) is. Sargent stated that he asked her where she wanted him to put it, and he stated
that location did not work for him. Mike Johnston stated at the conclusion of the last meeting, the
agreement was that Sargent would add to the flue, and then let it run a few weeks, and reconvene tonight.
Gennaro stated that Sargent was at her house to discuss this, and the burner went off at that time and there
was smoke. She stated the smoke still blows towards her house. Bob Durick asked her if she was
concerned about the aesthetics, as she stated at the last meeting. She stated no, she is concerned about the
smoke going towards her house. She claims she can smell it in her house, even with the windows closed,
and she has new windows on her house.

Mike Johnston stated, to reiterate where we left it last time, Sargent was going to add the stack, which he
did, and this is not an acceptable remedy. She would like it relocated to the back of the property.
Gennaro stated that is correct.

Ricky Morrison stated that it was discussed at the last meeting that Sargent would get price and footage
requirements to move the furnace back. Sargent stated he looked at this; however, the logistics will not
work.

John Grahovac asked Sargent if he can run the stack parallel to the ground and add fans or whatever to
make the smoke go parallel to the ground and exit into the woods. Sargent stated that was the first thing
he considered, moving the exhaust where it would exhaust further back, but it would not make anything
work any better. Sargent stated he works in the HVAC industry and asked the same question to his co-
workers, but this option was not beneficial.

Ricky Morrison asked Sargent if the burner would be used year around. Sargent stated yes, he plans to
use it to heat his water as well.

Mike Johnston asked if anyone else would like to speak against the request. No one responds. Mike
Johnston stated that since hearing none, he asks Sargent if he would like to address the concerns of his
neighbor.

Elizabeth Sargent
8827 Woodland Drive

Elizabeth Sargent stated that every once in awhile a haze will come through the yard from Don’s burner,
but she does not smell smoke, and she does not have new windows, she does not smell smoke in her
house. She stated the only time she smells smoke is when her husband comes in the house after standing
in front of the burner to light it. She stated that they understand smoke will come out, but when it lights,
probably the amount of a small camp fire comes out for about five minutes, then it dissipates. It is not
their intention to smoke anybody out, but that is not what is happening either. She stated they are trying
to remedy the situation as best they can.



Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting
October 27, 2022
ZA-08-22, ZA-09-22, ZA-10-22
ZA-07-21, ZA-07-22 (Both Cases Continuances)

Ricky Morrison asked Justin Sargent if he is prepared to move the burner. Sargent replied, as stated in
the last meeting, he would exercise every option before moving it, and he is still doing that. He stated
that at the last meeting, he was expecting it to be an aesthetic issue, since this is not the first time the
neighbor complained. They complain about pretty much everything he does. Morrison stated he was
prepared for aesthetics also, but at the end of the last meeting he asked Gennaro about the aesthetics and
she stated she was not concerned about aesthetics for the record, as she was going to do landscaping.
Gennaro stated she put up a fence so she will not see the wood piles. He asked Gennaro what setback
would make her happy. She stated she would like his burner to be located where Don’s is located. Sargent
stated this would be approximately 130 feet from where it currently is located.

Sargent stated that he researched an emission control device, which is another option that he would like to
exercise. Mike Johnston asked Gennaro if this device would satisfy her. She stated as long as it works.
Johnston asked Sargent if the conclusion tonight is to ask him to purchase this and run the burner, then
reconvene, would this be amendable to everyone. Gennaro stated she is not opposed to Sargent trying it.
The following motion was then made:

Motion

Bob Durick made a motion in Case ZA-07-22 to continue the case to allow the appellant to purchase and
install an emission control device. The Board will reconvene at a date to be determined but no later than
January 31, 2023. John Grahovac seconded the motion.

Voting:

Yes  Bob Durick

Yes  John Grahovac

Yes  Ricky Morrison

Yes  Mike Johnston

Motion carried.

4th Order of Business:

Case #ZA-08-22 — This case is a request from Rebecca Snyder to reduce the minimum lot width of one
parcel from one hundred (100) feet to sixty (60) feet, to allow for access to the remaining seventeen point
seven (17.7) acre lot. The property is located at 5380 Center Road, Lowellville, Ohio, Poland Township
and is known as lot 1, parcel number 35-086-0-022.01-0 and is in an (OF) Office / (R-1) Residential-1
zoning district.

Items included in packet submitted:

Zoning Permit Denial Form

Application to the Board of Zoning Appeals
Letter of Intent

Abutting Property Owner List

Zoning Office Property Information
Property Description (Auditor)

ocoukrowpnpE



Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting
October 27, 2022
ZA-08-22, ZA-09-22, ZA-10-22
ZA-07-21, ZA-07-22 (Both Cases Continuances)

7. Aerial View

8. Zoning District Map

9. Current Plat

10. Proposed Plan

11. Warranty Deed

Rebecca Snyder
9151 Springfield Road Unit 40

Rebecca Snyder stated this property has been in the family for over 100 years and they would like to keep
it in the family. There are no immediate plans to sell 5380 Center Road.

Mike Johnston asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of this request. No one responds. Mike
Johnston asked if anyone would like to speak against this request. No one responds.

Mike Johnston stated he has no problem with this case. Ricky Morrison agreed.

The following motion was then made:

Motion

Ricky Morrison made a motion in Case ZA-08-22 to grant the variance to reduce the setback (minimum
lot width) from one hundred (100) feet to sixty (60) feet, being a forty (40) foot relief, as per the plans
submitted. Bob Durick seconded the motion.

Voting:

Yes  Ricky Morrison

Yes  Bob Durick

Yes  John Grahovac

Yes  Mike Johnston

Motion carried.

5" Order of Business:

Case #ZA-09-22 — This case is a request from Charles Meadors to construct a six hundred (600) square
foot (20° x 30°) accessory building addition to the existing one thousand twenty-four (1,024) square foot
building. The overall square footage of the building will be one thousand six hundred twenty-four (1,624)
square feet. The appellant is also seeking relief of one foot to the height of the structure for an overall
height of sixteen (16) feet. The property is located at 3880 Arrel Road, Poland, Ohio, Poland Township
and is known as lot 5, parcel number 35-071-0-017.00-0 and is in a (R-1) Residential-1 zoning district.

Items included in packet submitted:

1. Zoning Permit Denial Form
2. Application to the Board of Zoning Appeals



Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting
October 27, 2022
ZA-08-22, ZA-09-22, ZA-10-22
ZA-07-21, ZA-07-22 (Both Cases Continuances)

3. Letter of Intent

4. Zoning Office Property Information
5. Property Description (Auditor)

6. Zoning District Map

7. 2021 Aerial View

8. Site Plan

9. Elevation Plans

10. Warranty Deed

Charles Meadors
3880 Arrel Road

Meadors stated he had no additional information to add.

Ricky Morrison asked Meadors if he is okay with the Board granting sixteen (16) feet to peak of roof.
Meadors stated yes.

Mike Johnston asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of this request. No one responds. Mike
Johnston asked if anyone would like to speak against this request. No one responds.

The following motion was made:

Motion

Ricky Morrison made a motion in Case ZA-09-22 to grant the variance to allow for sixteen (16) feet to the
peak of roof, as per the plans submitted, as well as to add an addition of six hundred (600) square feet to
the existing accessory building, for an overall square footage of one thousand six hundred twenty-four
(1,624) with dimensions of (32" x 32°). John Grahovac seconded the motion.

Voting:

Yes  Ricky Morrison

Yes  John Grahovac

Yes  Bob Durick

Yes  Mike Johnston

Motion carried.

6" Order of Business:

Case #ZA-10-22 — This case is a request from Joseph Vrona to divide his lot where his home is located
and create a second lot next to it. The request for relief is for the proposed second lot, where he wishes to
reduce the minimum lot area requirement from two acres to twenty-eight thousand six hundred fifty one
(28,651) square feet and to reduce the rear yard setback to twenty-nine point five (29.5) feet, instead of
the required fifty (50) foot setback, to allow for a new home to be built on the lot. The property is located
at 7057 Luteran Lane, Poland, Ohio, Poland Township, and is known as lot 3, parcel number 35-035-0-
016.02-0, and is in an (E) Estate zoning district.



Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting
October 27, 2022
ZA-08-22, ZA-09-22, ZA-10-22
ZA-07-21, ZA-07-22 (Both Cases Continuances)

Items included in packet submitted:

Zoning Permit Denial Form

Application to the Board of Zoning Appeals
Letter of Intent

Zoning Office Property Information
Property Description (Auditor)

Zoning District Map

Aerial View of Property

Site Plan

Warranty Deed

©CoNO~wWNE

Joseph Vrona
7057 Luteran Lane

Vrona stated he had no additional information to add.

Mike Johnston read a letter to the Board from abutting neighbor, Jim Burgham, for the record. Burgham
is in favor of the request.

Ricky Morrison stated he has no problem with the variance.
The following motion was made:
Motion

Mike Johnston made a motion in Case ZA-10-22 to grant the variance to reduce the minimum lot area
and to reduce the rear yard setback to twenty-nine point five (29.5) feet, as per the plans submitted. Bob
Durick seconded the motion.

Voting:

Yes Mike Johnston
Yes Bob Durick
Yes  John Grahovac
Yes  Ricky Morrison

Motion carried.
Meeting adjourned at 8:37 p.m.

Submitted by:
Michele Richards/Recording Secretary
cc: Trustees (3)
Board of Zoning Appeals (6)
Zoning Commission (6)
Paul. Canter, Fiscal Officer (1)
File (1)



